
November 27, 2023 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND CERTIFIED U.S. MAIL/RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
Committee to recall Craig Baldwin 
Attn: Allen Arthur Lindeman  
14287 E. Marina Dr  
Aurora, CO 80014 

Committee to recall Craig Baldwin 
Attn: Bonnie Laraine Fleming  
13961 E. Marina Dr # 613 
Aurora, CO 80014 

Committee to recall Craig Baldwin 
Attn: John Emory Harvey 
14102 E. Linvale Pl #401 
Aurora, CO 80014 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Board of Directors  
Heather Gardens Metropolitan District 
Daniel Taylor, danieltaylor@hgmetrodist.org 
Rita Effler, ritaeffler@hgmetrodist.org 
Craig Baldwin, craigbaldwin@hgmetrodist.org 
Robin O’Meara, robinomeara@hgmetrodist.org 
Eloise Laubach, eloiselaubach@hgmetrodist.org 

RE: Notice of Disapproval of Recall Petition as to Form 

Committee to recall Craig Baldwin: 

I have received the form of recall petition for review in accordance with Section 32-1-909(3), 
C.R.S.  Pursuant to Section 32-1-909(3), C.R.S., the Designated Election Official (“DEO”) shall 
approve or disapprove a petition as to form by the close of the third business day following 
appointment as DEO. I was appointed as DEO on November 21, 2023.

Under Section 1-1-106(4), C.R.S., if the last day for any act to be done is a Saturday, Sunday, or 
a legal holiday and completion of such act involves a filing or other action during business hours, 
the period is extended to include the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday. 
November 23, 25, and 26, 2023 were either a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday. As such, the 
deadline to approve or disapprove the petition as to form is November 27, 2023.  

In accordance with Section 32-1-909(3), C.R.S., I hereby disapprove the form of petition 
submitted, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, as to form.  Pursuant to Section 
32-1-909(3)(c), C.R.S., the DEO shall identify the portions of the petition that are not sufficient
and the reasons they are not sufficient, which are as follows:

1. Pursuant to Section 32-1-909(4)(c), C.R.S., the general statement of the grounds on which
the recall is sought must not include any false statement. The DEO does not have sufficient
information to determine the accuracy of the statements included in such general statement,
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has not undertaken any independent investigation to determine the accuracy thereof, and 
does not make any determination as to the accuracy thereof. However, the DEO received 
the notarized Objection to Recall Petition  attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit B asserting that the general statement in the petition submitted includes false 
statements.

The foregoing information is being provided in compliance with my duties as DEO for the Heather 
Gardens Metropolitan District. The information contained herein does not constitute professional 
advice to the Committee to recall Craig Baldwin. 

AJBeckm 
Designated Election Official 
Heather Gardens Metropolitan District 



 

 

EXHIBIT A  
 

Recall Petition Disapproved as to Form 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DATE FILED: November 16, 2023 10:35 AM 
FILING ID: D7E66C57225C3 
CASE NUMBER: 1983CV105 















 

 
EXHIBIT B  

 
Protest Regarding False Statements in General Statement 





November 26, 2023 

 

Objection to Petition to Recall Craig Baldwin from the office of Director of the Heather Gardens 
Metropolitan District.  

 To: A. J. Beckman, Public Alliance 

THE GROUNDS FOR MY RECALL CONTAIN FALSE STATEMENTS, THEREFORE THE PETITION SHOULD BE 
FOUND INSUFFICIENT AND WITHDRAWN. 

 

STATEMENT #1:  CRAIG BALDWIN CREATED A TOXIC AND HOSTILE WORK ENVIROMENT. 

In order to communicate with the management and staff since our election, I have received permission from 
the HGA CEO to work with a number of managers and staff for the past six months.  These requests and 
approvals are on file with our attorney.  At no time have I “created a toxic and hostile work environment”.  It 
has been just the opposite.  My communications with the CEO and the CFO are all documented in copies of my 
emails to and from them.  In my conversations with the CFO he expressed a desire to retire, which he has 
done.  The CEO mentioned his reason for leaving was; it wasn’t a good fit. 

 

STATEMENT #2:  “BLIND COPY” EMAILS PARTICULARY FROM THE OTHER THREE DIRECTORS. 

“Blind copy” emails to and from other Directors are a public record and can be provided upon request.  
Anyone will find from these emails there has not been “critical and disparaging comments about various 
employees.” 

 

STATEMENT #3:  THIS BEHAVIOR THREATENS THE PEACEFUL WORK ENVIRONMENT OF HEATHER GARDENS.. 

I have served this community very successfully for the past 14 years; and am serving my third term as a Board 
of Director.  I have received maximum support from the staff and residents in all of my endeavors. 

 

Therefore I request the recall petition be found insufficient and withdrawn. 

 

Craig Baldwin, Director 

Heather Gardens Metropolitan District 

 

  



Objection to Recall Petition as to Form 
 
Designated Election Official: AJ Beckman, Public Alliance 
 
Petition to Recall Craig Baldwin from the Office of Director of the Heather Gardens 
Metropolitan District 
 
Text of Recall Statement: Sentence numbers added. 
 

1. Craig Baldwin, in his role as a director of Heather Gardens Metropolitan District, in 
conjunction with three other HGMD Directors, has created a toxic and hostile work 
environment that has resulted in the resignation of the Heather Gardens Chief Executive 
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Clubhouse Manager, the Security Chief and the 
Maintenance Manager. 

2. He has circulated to inappropriate recipients many “blind-copy” emails, particularly from 
the other three directors, containing critical and disparaging comments about various 
employees. 

3. This behavior threatens the peaceful work environment of Heather Gardens and the best 
interests of the owners and residents. 

C.R.S. §32-1-909(4)(c) states that the petition may not contain false statements. I object to the 
sentence which states that states that my conduct and the conduct of three other directors resulted 
in staff resignations. I agree that these employees resigned. I had no contact with three of the 
employees named, the Clubhouse Manager, the Security Chief and the Maintenance Manager. I 
had minimal contact with the Chief Executive Officer and worked more closely with the Chief 
Financial Officer. All staff contact is through the HGMD Board President except some emails 
with the CFO. 
 
In the November edition of the Heather ‘n Yon, Heather Gardens’ monthly magazine, Chief 
Human Resources Officer Holly Shearer wrote a long article containing “verbatim” comments 
made in the employee exit interviews. Not one exit interview mentioned a problem with any 
HGMD director or a toxic and hostile work environment, much less who was responsible.1 
 
Allen Lindeman, one of the recall committee, stated in an email on November 18, 2023, to an 
HGMD Committee Chair, that “The recall is based upon email statements from those who 
resigned, meetings of the HGMD Board where members publically insulted HGA staff including 
calling them liars, and exit interviews conducted by HGA staff.” 
 
Mr. Lindman is not a member the HGA staff or Board. How would he have access to “exit 
interviews conducted by HGA staff or employee email statements?”2 
 
Therefore , I request the recall petition be disapproved as to sentence number 1. 
 
Dated November 24, 2023. 

 
1 Heather ‘n Yon Article November 2023 attached 
2 Email from Al Lindeman to Forrest McClure dated Novem 18, 2023 
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 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
   
 Craig Baldwin, Director 
 HGMD Board of Directors 
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